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Riley Austin

From: Ray Milosh <ray.milosh@chathamcountync.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, May 8, 2024 1:36 PM
To: mrk@thesitegroup.net; Miguel Lopez
Cc: 'Sam Nye'; 'Riley Austin'
Subject: RE: Ridgewood Hills - Well Abandonment

Hi Matt, 
 
The well must be abandoned by a certified well contractor in accordance with the “2C .0113” rules and a “GW-30” form 
must be submitted to the county afterwards.  Well drillers are accustomed to this process. 
 
As far as permitting goes, have the well contractor contact Miguel Lopez (919) 545-8378 on the day before or the 
morning of the day they intend to abandon the well. Miguel will meet them on site to observe the abandonment process 
and fill in the permit at that time.   
 
 
The well abandonment rules are attached. 
https://www.google.com/url?sa=t&source=web&rct=j&opi=89978449&url=http://reports.oah.state.nc.us/ncac/title%2520
15a%2520-%2520environmental%2520quality/chapter%252002%2520-
%2520environmental%2520management/subchapter%2520c/15a%2520ncac%252002c%2520.0113.pdf&ved=2ahUKEwj
0ldO4yv6FAxVED1kFHf_ZBjYQFnoECBkQAQ&usg=AOvVaw2F04dlUR-wokI0KqSrHem8 
 
15A NCAC 02C .0113 ABANDONMENT OF WELLS 
(a) A well that is temporarily removed from service shall be temporarily abandoned in accordance with the 
following procedures: 
(1) The well shall be sealed with a water-tight cap or well seal, as defined in G.S. 87-85(16), 
compatible with the casing and installed so that it cannot be removed without the use of hand tools 
or power tools. 
(2) The well shall be maintained whereby it is not a source or channel of contamination during 
temporary abandonment. 
(b) Permanent abandonment of water supply wells other than bored or hand dug wells shall be performed in 
accordance with the following procedures: 
(1) All casing and screen materials may be removed prior to initiation of abandonment procedures if 
such removal will not cause or contribute to contamination of the groundwaters. 
(2) The entire depth of the well shall be sounded before it is sealed to ensure freedom from 
obstructions that may interfere with sealing operations. 
(3) Except in the case of temporary wells and monitoring wells, the well shall be disinfected in 
accordance with Rule .0111(b)(1)(A) through .0111(b)(1)(C) of this Section. 
(4) In the case of gravel-packed wells in which the casing and screens have not been removed, neat- 
cement or bentonite slurry grout shall be injected into the well, completely filling it from the 
bottom of the casing to the top. 
(5) Wells constructed in unconsolidated formations shall be completely filled with grout by 
introducing it through a pipe extending to the bottom of the well that can be raised as the well is 
filled. 
(6) Wells constructed in consolidated rock formations or that penetrate zones of consolidated rock 
may be filled with grout, sand, gravel or drill cuttings within the zones of consolidated rock. The 
top of any sand, gravel or cutting fill shall terminate at least 10 feet below the top of the 
consolidated rock or five feet below the bottom of casing. Grout shall be placed beginning 10 feet 
below the top of the consolidated rock or five feet below the bottom of casing in a manner to 
ensure complete filling of the casing, and extend up to the land surface. For any well in which the 
depth of casing or the depth of the bedrock is not known or cannot be confirmed, the entire length 
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of the well shall be filled with grout up to the land surface. 
(c) For bored wells or hand dug water supply wells constructed into unconsolidated material: 
(1) The well shall be disinfected in accordance with Rule .0111(b)(1)(A) through .0111(b)(1)(C) of 
this Section. 
(2) All plumbing or piping in the well and any other obstructions inside the well shall be removed 
from the well. 
(3) The uppermost three feet of well casing shall be removed from the well. 
(4) All soil or other subsurface material present down to the top of the remaining well casing shall be 
removed, including the material extending 12 inches or greater outside of the well casing; 
(5) The well shall be filled to the top of the remaining casing with grout, dry clay, or material 
excavated during construction of the well. If dry clay or material excavated during construction of 
the well is used, it shall be emplaced in lifts no more than five feet thick, each compacted in place 
prior to emplacement of the next lift. 
(6) A six-inch thick concrete grout plug shall be placed on top of the remaining casing such that it 
covers the entire excavated area above the top of the casing, including the area extending 12 
inches or greater outside the well casing. 
(7) The remainder of the well above the concrete plug shall be filled with grout or soil. 
(d) All wells other than water supply wells, including temporary wells, monitoring wells, or test borings: 
(1) less than 20 feet in depth that do not penetrate the water table shall be abandoned by filling the 
entire well up to land surface with grout, dry clay, or material excavated during drilling of the well 
and then compacted in place; 
(2) greater than 20 feet in depth or that penetrate the water table shall be abandoned by completely 
filling with a bentonite or cement - type grout; and 
(3) constructed in consolidated rock formations or that penetrate zones of consolidated rock may be 
filled with grout, sand, gravel, or drill cuttings within the zones of consolidated rock. The top of 
any sand, gravel or cutting fill shall terminate 10 feet or greater below the top of the consolidated 
rock or five feet below the bottom of the casing. Grout shall be placed beginning 10 feet below the 
top of the consolidated rock or five feet below the bottom of the casing in a manner to ensure 
complete filling of the casing and shall extend up to the land surface. For any well in which the 
depth of the casing or the depth of the bedrock is not known or cannot be confirmed, the entire 
length of the well shall be filled with grout up to the land surface. 
(e) Any well that acts as a source or channel of contamination shall be repaired or permanently abandoned within 
30 days of receipt of notice from the Department. 
(f) All wells shall be permanently abandoned in which the casing has not been installed or from which the casing 
has been removed, prior to removing drilling equipment from the site. 
(g) The well owner is responsible for permanent abandonment of a well except that: 
(1) the well contractor is responsible for well abandonment if abandonment is required because the 
well contractor improperly locates, constructs, repairs or completes the well; 
(2) the person who installs, repairs or removes the well pump is responsible for well abandonment if 
that abandonment is required because of improper well pump installation, repair or removal; or 
(3) the well contractor (or individual) who conducts a test boring is responsible for its abandonment at 
the time the test boring is completed. 
History Note: Authority G.S. 87-87; 87-88; 
Eff. February 1, 1976; 
Amended Eff. September 1, 2009; April 1, 2001; December 1, 1992; September 1, 1984; April 20, 
1978; 
Readopted Eff. September 1, 2019 
 
Ray Milosh, REHS  
Environmental Health Specialist 
Chatham County Public Health Department  
80 East Street/PO BOX 130 
Pittsboro, NC 27312 
www.chathamnc.org/environmentalhealth   
919-545-8319 
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From: mrk@thesitegroup.net <mrk@thesitegroup.net>  
Sent: Monday, May 6, 2024 3:42 PM 
To: Ray Milosh <ray.milosh@chathamcountync.gov> 
Cc: 'Sam Nye' <srn@thesitegroup.net>; 'Riley Austin' <rla@thesitegroup.net> 
Subject: Ridgewood Hills - First Plat Review  
 

WARNING: This message originated from outside the Chatham County email system. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hi Ray, 
 
I am with The Site Group, PLLC and we’re working on a project at 739 Hatley Road (parcel #17357).  Our plan is to 
remove an old well that is on property, and we’ve been told by County Planning to contact your office. Can you advise us 
on what needs to be done to properly remove this well? 
 
Thank you for your help, 
Matt  
 

Matt Koontz | Site Designer  
mrk@thesitegroup.net 

THE SITE GROUP 
Civil Engineers  •  Landscape Architects 
1111 Oberlin Road     t: 919.835.4787 
Raleigh, NC 27605     c: 919.830.2855 
 


